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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go on the re c o r d . At t h i s 

time, l e t the r e c o r d r e f l e c t t h a t t h i s i s the r e g u l a r l y 

scheduled October meeting o f the New Mexico O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n , the meeting date i s November 6th , 2008. The recor d 

should r e f l e c t t h a t the time i s 9:05 a.m. 

The r e c o r d should also r e f l e c t t h a t a l l t h r e e 

commissioners are present; Commissioner B a i l e y , Commissioner 

Olson, and Commissioner Fesmire. We, t h e r e f o r e , have a quorum. 

And the f i r s t order of business before the Commission 

i s the minutes of the September 11th and September 12th 

meetings. We'll s t a r t w i t h minutes of the September 11th 

meeting. 

Have the Commissioners had a chance t o review those 

orders ? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and I move we 

accept them. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I ' l l second t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n favor s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. 

The r e c o r d should r e f l e c t t h a t the minutes of the 

September 11th, 2008, O i l Conservation Commission meeting were 

unanimously adopted by the commissioners and w i l l be signed by 
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the chairman and t r a n s m i t t e d t o the s e c r e t a r y . 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next order of business before 

the Commission i s the minutes of the s p e c i a l meeting of the O i l 

Conservation Commission h e l d on September 12th, 2008. Have the 

Commissioners had a chance t o review the minutes as presented 

by the secretary? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, and I move we adopt them. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s there a second? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes. I ' l l second t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n fa v o r s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. 

Let the r e c o r d r e f l e c t the minutes as presented by 

the s e c r e t a r y were unanimously adopted by the Commission, 

signed by the Chairman and t r a n s m i t t e d t o the s e c r e t a r y . 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next order of business before 

the Commission i s the f i n a l order i n Case No. 14001 and 14002. 

Case 14001 i s the de novo a p p l i c a t i o n of Chesapeake Energy 

E x p l o r a t i o n , LLC f o r s t a t u t o r y u n i t i z a t i o n of the Quail Queen 

U n i t , Lea County, New Mexico, and Case No. 14002 i s the 

a p p l i c a t i o n of Chesapeake E x p l o r a t i o n , LLC f o r approval of a 
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w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t and q u a l i f i c a t i o n of the p r o j e c t area f o r 

the Quail Queen U n i t f o r recovered o i l t a x r a t e pursuant t o the 

Enhanced O i l Recovery Act i n Lea County, New Mexico. 

Have the Commissioners had a chance t o review Order 

No. R-12952-B? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and I b e l i e v e i t 

a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t s the dec i s i o n s t h a t we reached concerning 

t h a t case. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I agree w i t h Commissioner 

B a i l e y , and I ' l l second t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. A l l those i n favo r o f 

adopting the order as presented by counsel, s i g n i f y by saying 

"aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. 

Let the re c o r d r e f l e c t t h a t the order as presented by 

counsel was unanimously adopted by the Commission and w i l l be 

signed by each one of the Commissioners and t r a n s m i t t e d t o the 

se c r e t a r y . 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next order of business before 

the Commission i s Case No. 14181, the A p p l i c a t i o n of the 

New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r the Repeal, Adoption 
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and Amendment of Rules Issued Pursuant t o the O i l and Gas Act, 

NMSA 1978 Section 70-2-1 through 70-2-38. 

At the request of the Commissioners, the Commission 

w i l l continue t h i s case u n t i l tomorrow t o a l l o w the 

Commissioners one f i n a l chance t o review the order as 

presented. I t w i l l be taken up tomorrow, November 7t h , 2008, 

i n t h i s room a t 9 o'clock. I s t h a t acceptable t o the 

Commissioners? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, i t i s . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So Case No. 14181 w i l l be 

continued u n t i l tomorrow, November 7t h , 2008, 9 o'clock a.m. i n 

Porter H a l l . 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next issue before the 

Commission i s Case No. 14047. I t ' s the de novo A p p l i c a t i o n of 

Celero Energy I I , LP, f o r Expansion of the Waterflood P r o j e c t 

i n Chaves County, New Mexico. At the request of the a p p l i c a n t , 

t h i s case w i l l be dismissed. Madame Secretary, i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

THE SECRETARY: Yes. 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next order of business before 

the Commission i s Case No. 14238. Pursuant t o the p r o v i s i o n s 

of the O i l and Gas D i v i s i o n Rule 19.15.14.1218(B) NMAC, the 
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D i v i s i o n D i r e c t o r sets f o r hearing before the O i l Conservation 

Commission the requests f o r approval of two A p p l i c a t i o n s f o r 

Permit t o D r i l l i n the Blanco-Mesaverde Pool f i l e d by MacElvain 

O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . i n Rio A r r i b a County. 

At the request of the only complainant i n t h i s 

case -- I guess, the only i n t e r e s t e d p a r t y on re c o r d — the 

onl y i n t e r e s t e d p a r t y , I guess, t h i s case w i l l be dismissed. 

Mr. H a l l , you're the a t t o r n e y i n t h i s case. Have you 

been so informed? Aren't you the a t t o r n e y ? 

MR. HALL: No. I t ' s Mr. Feldewert. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Oh, i t ' s Mr. Feldewert? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t ' s a c t u a l l y me, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the re c o r d r e f l e c t t h a t the 

a t t o r n e y i s Ocean Munds-Dry, and the other p a r t y i n t h i s case 

has withdrawn t h e i r o b j e c t i o n . And t h i s w i l l be remanded back 

t o the Aztec f i e l d o f f i c e f o r h a n d l i n g as an A p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

Permit t o D r i l l . I s t h a t your understanding? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: That's my understanding, 

Mr. Chairman. Thank you. 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. The next case before the 

Commission i s Case No. 14122. I t ' s the de novo A p p l i c a t i o n of 

Pecos Operating Company f o r Approval of a Non-Commercial 

Saltwater Disposal Well i n Lea County, New Mexico. 

What i s scheduled t o be heard before the Commission 
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today i s a motion t o dismiss H&M Disposal's u n t i m e l y 

a p p l i c a t i o n of the su b j e c t a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Are the at t o r n e y s present? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, Scott H a l l , 

Montgomery and Andrews law f i r m , Sante Fe, on be h a l f of H&M 

Disposal. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, 

Commissioners, Ocean Munds-Dry w i t h the law f i r m of Holland and 

Hart, here r e p r e s e n t i n g Pecos Operating Company t h i s morning. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And i s i t the understanding of 

both p a r t i e s t h a t we're here today j u s t t o argue the motion t o 

dismiss; t h a t i f the motion i s not granted, the case w i l l be 

continued t o a l a t e r date? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: That i s my understanding. 

MR. HALL: That i s c o r r e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , i t ' s your motion, so I 

guess you go f i r s t . 

MR. HALL: A c t u a l l y , i t ' s Ms. Munds-Dry's motion. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t ' s my motion. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm s o r r y . I apologize. I t ' s 

been s i x weeks. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: You're a l i t t l e r u s t y . That's a l l 

r i g h t . 

Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, our motion i s f a i r l y 
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s t r a i g h t f o r w a r d , and I won't take up too much of your time. As 

you read i n the motion, I'm sure, t h i s m a tter was heard before 

the D i v i s i o n on May 15th. An order was entered by the D i v i s i o n 

on August 4 t h . Our o f f i c e obtained the order -- where i t i s 

r e g u l a r l y kept u p s t a i r s -- on August 6th. So we know a t t h a t 

p o i n t , a t l e a s t , i t was a v a i l a b l e f o r pickup or f o r 

p u b l i c a t i o n . 

As you know, under the s t a t u t e s , under 70-2-13, any 

i n t e r e s t e d p a r t y or a f f e c t e d p a r t y has 30 days t o appeal t h a t 

d e c i s i o n as of the date of the order from the D i v i s i o n . 

Mr. H a l l ' s c l i e n t , H&M, d i d not f i l e t h e i r a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

hearing de novo u n t i l 45 days a f t e r the order was entered. 

Therefore, we request the a p p l i c a t i o n be dismissed because i t 

was u n t i m e l y . And t h a t ' s r e a l l y the crux of our argument. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Ha l l ? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, I don't t h i n k 

i t ' s d i s p u t e d i n t h i s case t h a t the order was not placed i n the 

m a i l t o counsel o f re c o r d f o r these cases. The D i v i s i o n has a 

r u l e -- i t ' s Rule 1222 -- which r e q u i r e s t h a t orders be placed 

i n the m a i l t o counsel of recor d w i t h i n t e n days of t h e i r 

issuance. And t h a t ' s j u s t what -- t h a t ' s what happened. 

That's a l l . 

The order was obtained when I came over here on one 

of the r e g u l a r Examiner Hearing dates and checked the 

out-basket and found the order a t t h a t time w i t h some other 
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orders t h a t had accumulated t h e r e . We f e l t t h a t we acted w i t h 

d i l i g e n c e . We were aware o f the 30-day p r o v i s i o n o f the 

s t a t u t e and the day we obtained the order, f i l e d our 

a p p l i c a t i o n f o r h e a r i n g de novo. 

The simple s t r a i g h t f o r w a r d argument of Pecos 

Operating i n t h i s case i s t h a t you have no choice but t o apply 

the 30-day p r o v i s i o n o f the s t a t u t e i n the r u l e i n a c r i t i c a l 

and u n y i e l d i n g manner. I would submit t o you t h a t ' s i n c o r r e c t . 

I t h i n k t h i s Commission i s w e l l aware i t r e g u l a r l y exercises 

i t s d i s c r e t i o n t o modify i t s orders. The D i v i s i o n r e t a i n s 

j u r i s d i c t i o n over a l l of i t s orders t o issue subsequent orders 

t o cure any de f e c t s t h a t may occur. I t h i n k t h a t would be 

ap p r o p r i a t e i n t h i s case. 

I n a d d i t i o n , Mr. Chairman, we've b r i e f e d whether the 

30-day p r o v i s i o n s of the s t a t u t e must be a p p l i e d i n a r i g i d , 

mandatory manner, and we t h i n k the answer t o t h a t i s "no." The 

guidance f o r the Commission i s found under the Uniform S t a t u t e 

and Rule C o n s t r u c t i o n Act, a seldom c i t e d a c t . And what i t 

does i s i t provides c o u r t s and agencies guidance on how they 

are t o construe t h e i r own r u l e s i n a un i f o r m manner. And i f 

you w i l l look a t the p r o v i s i o n s of t h a t a c t , i t provides -- i f 

I may approach, Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

MR. HALL: I ' l l p r o v i d e you w i t h a memorandum. This 

i s the o r i g i n a l . What the Uniform C o n s t r u c t i o n Act --
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MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. H a l l , do you have another copy? 

MR. HALL: I'm s o r r y . 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

MR. HALL: What the Uniform C o n s t r u c t i o n Act t e l l s 

us --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Can you give us some time t o read 

t h i s ? 

MR. HALL: Go ahead. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , proceed please. 

MR. HALL: What I would suggest t o you i s what the 

Uniform Rule S t a t u t e C o n s t r u c t i o n Act t e l l s us i s t h a t you may 

not take one i s o l a t e d excerpt from the O i l and Gas Act and 

apply i t w i t h e x c l u s i v i t y ; r a t h e r , you must apply a l l of the 

s t a t u t e s w i t h i n the context of the o v e r a l l purposes of the O i l 

and Gas Act. And t h a t r e q u i r e s you t o r e c o n c i l e the 30-day 

p r o v i s i o n w i t h the Commission and the D i v i s i o n ' s o ther 

s t a t u t o r y mandates. 

And I would suggest t o you those i n t h i s case 

d i r e c t l y i m p l i c a t e the agency's d u t i e s t o make sure t h a t the 

d i s p o s i t i o n of produced water i s done i n such a manner so t h a t 

there's no escape of water from s t r a t a , and a d j o i n i n g 

p r o p e r t i e s are not damaged. That's what I t h i n k you have t o do 

here. 

We have also p o i n t e d out t h a t i n -- i t i s the 

agency's c o n s i s t e n t p r a c t i c e t o provide a f u l l and f a i r h earing 
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f o r v i r t u a l l y anybody who comes before i t . Everybody gets a 

f a i r h e a r i n g before t h i s agency. So what we're asking you t o 

do i n t h i s case i s t o cure an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e e r r o r t o allow H&M 

a f u l l and f a i r h e a r i n g on the s u b s t a n t i v e issues o f the Pecos 

Operating a p p l i c a t i o n and t h e i r C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n t o the 

agency. 

What we would ask you t o do i s enter an A Order, 

simply moving the e f f e c t i v e date of the o r i g i n a l order issued 

i n t h i s case t o August 18th or beyond, which would make the 

a p p l i c a t i o n f o r hearing de novo t i m e l y and would a l l o w H&M t o 

present i t s concerns t o t h i s Commission. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, any r e b u t t a l ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Chairman, granted I've j u s t 

r eceived t h i s memorandum as you d i d , but my i n i t i a l r e a c t i o n t o 

i t i s Mr. H a l l i s now f o r c i n g you t o look a t the substance of 

h i s claims f o r appeal, since I don't t h i n k you've seen t h a t , 

and you have no idea what s t a t u t o r y p r o v i s i o n s would be 

i n d i c a t e d t o look at here. 

But keep i n mind the D i v i s i o n has ongoing 

j u r i s d i c t i o n over t h i s matter, and under t h a t order, i t ' s 

c l e a r l y i n t h e r e . So i f t h e r e are issues -- and we're f a m i l i a r 

w i t h what Mr. H a l l ' s c l i e n t i s seeking t o have amended i n t h a t 

order -- we b e l i e v e those are a l l issues t h a t can be taken care 

of a t the D i v i s i o n l e v e l , anyway. 

And l e t ' s not f o r g e t another t h i n g : They had a f a i r 
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and i m p a r t i a l h e a r i n g a t the D i v i s i o n l e v e l a l r e a d y . And 

there's one other p o i n t t h a t I t h i n k i s im p o r t a n t , and I don't 

know -- and I don't t h i n k we can d i s p u t e the order was not 

mailed as r e q u i r e d i n the r u l e s -- but a l l a t t o r n e y s who 

p r a c t i c e r e g u l a r l y before the D i v i s i o n and Commission know t o 

check the outbox. We do so r e g u l a r l y , or we have people from 

our o f f i c e do so r e g u l a r l y . I don't know what happened here. 

I'm not suggesting t h a t Mr. H a l l , you know, blew i t o f f i n any 

way, but we c e r t a i n l y had i t a v a i l a b l e t o our o f f i c e and 

received i t on August 6th. 

So I guess my p o i n t i s t h a t we need t o make a 

d i s t i n c t i o n between what Mr. H a l l i s arguing here i n terms o f 

f o r c i n g you t o look a t the substance of what they seek t o 

appeal r a t h e r than the procedural issues under your r u l e s , 

which r e q u i r e them t o appeal by 30 days. 

So I t h i n k i t ' s j u s t a d i s t i n c t i o n t h a t I can 

h o p e f u l l y a r t i c u l a t e f o r you t h a t we need t o look a t here. And 

not t o f o r g e t t h a t they d i d already have a hearing where these 

issues were addressed. And i f the D i v i s i o n does have ongoing 

j u r i s d i c t i o n , t o c e r t a i n l y take care of any issues t h a t they 

wish t o address w i t h the D i v i s i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I t ' s undisputed t h a t OCD d i d 

not m a i l . Rule 1222 re q u i r e s the D i v i s i o n t o m a i l . I t h i n k 

due t o the D i v i s i o n ' s e r r o r , t h a t we do need t o look at t h i s 
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case. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Well, I t h i n k I would agree w i t h 

Commissioner B a i l e y . I t seems l i k e the r u l e s r e q u i r e there be 

some type of n o t i c e even though i t was t e n days a f t e r the order 

i s a f f e c t e d , which gives p l e n t y of time f o r someone t o appeals. 

I n t h i s case, i f t h a t d i d not happen, I t h i n k t h a t ' s 

p r e j u d i c i n g the p r o t e s t i n g p a r t y i f they d i d n ' t have an 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o get proper n o t i c e as r e q u i r e d by r u l e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, you're not arguing 

t h a t Mr. H a l l or h i s c l i e n t had access of the D i v i s i o n d e c i s i o n 

p r i o r t o — 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: No. We're not aware t h a t they d i d . 

We can't r e f u t e t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k I would have t o agree w i t h 

the other Commissioners. I t ' s an OCD -- i t looks l i k e from the 

arguments made today, the OCD d i d not comply w i t h Rule 1222, 

and I don't t h i n k we can import any de t r i m e n t t o Mr. H a l l ' s 

c l i e n t i n t h a t respect. 

So normally we would d e l i b e r a t e on t h i s , but I t h i n k 

the Commission i s of one mind, and w i t h the permission o f the 

Commissioners --

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I might ask a questio n f i r s t . I 

n o t i c e d i n the a p p l i c a n t ' s pre-hearing statement on the motion 

t h a t there's a note at the bottom t h a t t h i s i s the second 
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time -- t h a t statement from them and the f o o t n o t e i s t h a t t h i s 

i s the second time t h a t H&M f a i l e d t o comply w i t h the 

D i v i s i o n ' s r u l e s . I saw i n the order, I guess, t h a t t h e r e had 

been a motion t o dismiss a t the p r i o r D i v i s i o n h e a r i n g , but i t 

d i d n ' t r e a l l y say what or why. I t j u s t s a i d t h a t t h e r e was a 

motion t h a t was not accepted. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner Olson, H&M 

a c t u a l l y o b j e c t e d t o the C-108 f i l e d by Pecos 23 days a f t e r 

they r e c e i v e d n o t i c e . And as you are probably aware, they have 

15 days t o respond. So we d i d a c t u a l l y , a t t h a t time, also 

f i l e a motion t o dismiss and ask t h a t t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n be 

continued t o be processed a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y , but again, t h a t d i d 

go t o hea r i n g a f t e r a l l . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: And why was the motion 

overruled? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: You know, I wasn't a t t h a t hearing, 

so I u n f o r t u n a t e l y can't t e l l you, Commissioner Olson. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. The Chair would accept a 

motion f o r the d i s p o s i t i o n of the motion w i t h the 

Commissioners. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I ' l l make a motion t h a t we 

ov e r r u l e the motion t o dismiss the hearing. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Counsel, i s t h a t an adequate way 

t o address t h i s ? 
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[Chairman Fesmire confers w i t h counsel, Mr. Smith.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , counsel does r a i s e a 

que s t i o n : Rule 1222(b) i s the p r o v i s i o n t h a t you're arguing 

here today; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

MR. HALL: That's the ten-day r u l e ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I assume. 

MR. HALL: I b e t t e r look a t i t . Yes. Rule 1222. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And i s t h a t a j u r i s d i c t i o n a l 

p r o v i s i o n , or i s t h a t a general p r o v i s i o n ? 

MR. HALL: Right, and I d i d consider t h a t , whether 

the 30-day p r o v i s i o n under the s t a t u t e i s j u r i s d i c t i o n a l 

l i m i t a t i o n . And I j u s t -- my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n o f t h a t s t a t u t e , 

t h e r e i s no such language on the face of i t , so I don't t h i n k 

t h a t ' s a mandatory reading of t h a t . 

I t h i n k , again, because i t doesn't e x p r e s s l y say 

t h a t , you s t i l l have t o construe i t w i t h i n the context o f the 

e n t i r e act and make sure t h a t a l l of the s t a t u t e s are given 

a f f e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So the argument i s t h a t the 

Commission s t i l l has j u r i s d i c t i o n t o make the r u l i n g s t h a t you 

request? 

MR. HALL: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s t h a t adequate? Ms. Munds-Dry, 

do you have a response t o t h a t ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: No. I t h i n k Mr. H a l l ' s r i g h t . I 
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t h i n k i t ' s not c l e a r from the s t a t u t e t h a t you don't have 

j u r i s d i c t i o n . I ' d l i k e t o argue t h a t you don't, but I don't 

t h i n k i t ' s f a i r . And I don't t h i n k i t ' s f a i r f o r me t o say 

t h a t i t ' s c l e a r l y t h e r e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The Chair appreciates your 

i n t e g r i t y . 

With t h a t , there's a motion before the Commission t o 

o v e r r u l e the motion t o dismiss. A l l those i n fa v o r , s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. I'm s o r r y . I t ' s been a long 

time. 

Let the recor d r e f l e c t t h a t the motion t o dismiss i s 

denied by a unanimous vote of the Commission. 

Anything e l s e i n t h i s case? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much. 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next case before the 

Commission i s Case No. 13859, the de novo A p p l i c a t i o n of the 

New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r a Compliance Order 

against Pronghorn Management t h a t i s i n c o n j u n c t i o n w i t h the 

Case No. 14052. 

I t ' s my understanding, Madame Secretary, t h a t the 
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counsel f o r Pronghorn has withdrawn the a p p l i c a t i o n i n those 

cases. I s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

THE SECRETARY: That's c o r r e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. We w i l l — i n f a c t , we have 

already dismissed those cases, have we not? 

THE SECRETARY: Yes. 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And t h a t concludes e v e r y t h i n g on 

the agenda today. Do the Commissioners have a n y t h i n g else we 

need t o address? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The recor d again should c l e a r l y 

r e f l e c t t h a t the case on the r u l e s -- which one i s th a t ? Case 

No. 14181 has been continued t o tomorrow morning at 9 o'clock 

a.m. i n t h i s room. 

I s t h e r e a motion t o dismiss? Motion t o adjourn? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I so move. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I ' l l second t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n f a v o r say "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The Commission meeting i s 

adjourned at 9:35 a.m. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, we w i l l c a l l t o 

order the Thursday, September 11th, 2008, r e g u l a r l y scheduled 

meeting of the New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission. Let the 

record r e f l e c t t h a t i t i s 1:00 p.m., and t h a t a l l t h r e e 

Commissioners are present, Commissioner B a i l y , 

Commissioner Olson and Commissioner Fesmire. 

Before we s t a r t , I want t o welcome back our 

se c r e t a r y . She's been gone, and I want t o thank Theresa f o r 

f i l l i n g i n f o r her f o r the time t h a t she was gone. Thank you, 

and welcome. 

F i r s t i t e m on the agenda t h i s morning i s the minutes 

of the August 14th, 2008, Commission meeting. Have the 

Commissioners had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o look a t those minutes? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and I move we 

adopt them. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yeah, I made a couple of e d i t s . 

Would they be f o l d e d i n t o i t , I guess? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Were Commissioner Olson's e d i t s 

f o l d e d i n t o the minutes? 

MS. DURAN-SAENZ: I don't r e c a l l t h a t they were. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Counsel, can we hand-make the 

e d i t s or should we w a i t t o adopt them a t the next r e g u l a r l y 

scheduled meeting? 

MS. BADA: I t h i n k you can adopt them and j u s t d i r e c t 
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the Commission. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I ' l l second t h a t , as long as we 

can f o l d i n some of the e d i t s t h a t I have. Because I see, l i k e 

f o r example, on the de novo Case 14055, i t d i d n ' t mention who 

made the motions and the seconds. We u s u a l l y -- i t ' s i n other 

places i n here, but i t wasn't i n t h i s one. I had a few other 

e d i t s t h a t were i n here as w e l l . I want t o make sure i t ' s 

a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t e d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you t e l l us what those 

e d i t s would be and see i f Jamie and I have any o b j e c t i o n t o 

them. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Well, on the f i r s t one, th e r e 

was -- i t ' s on de novo Case 14055. I t j u s t t a l k s about a 

motion and a second. I t h i n k i t was a motion by Commissioner 

B a i l y and a second by Commissioner Olson, j u s t t o c l a r i f y the 

motions t h a t were made. I t was a c t u a l l y s e v e r a l e d i t s . I 

don't know i f you want t o go through a l l these. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you j u s t read them r e a l 

quick, and w e ' l l see i f there's a n y t h i n g t h a t --

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay. I had on the de novo 

Case 14041, i d e n t i f y i n g what witness i t was t h a t wasn't 

a v a i l a b l e . I t was Jane Prouty. And t h a t i t wasn't t h a t she 

wasn't a v a i l a b l e , I t h i n k i t was j u s t t h a t she wasn't c u r r e n t l y 

a v a i l a b l e f o r swearing i n a t t h a t p o i n t . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No problem. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: No problem. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I n the s e c t i o n on opening 

statements, i t t a l k e d about D i v i s i o n ' s opening statement --

v i o l a t i o n s . I t h i n k i t should be v i o l a t i o n s of OCD r u l e s j u s t 

f o r c l a r i t y . I was j u s t adding "of OCD r u l e s . " 

And there's a couple of typos i n a few spots as w e l l 

where i t ' s " e x p l a i n s " verses "explained." There were a couple 

of other typos i n t h a t s e c t i o n . And then I t h i n k j u s t f o r 

consistency throughout t h i s , I t h i n k i t l i s t e d a l o t of t h i s 

as -- i n some places i t l i s t e d the operator as d e f i n e d as "the 

operator." I n some places i t ' s "Marks and Garner." I t should 

be used c o n s i s t e n t l y through the whole t h i n g as e i t h e r Marks 

and Garner Production L i m i t e d Company or the oper a t o r . 

And I had a couple of other minor typos. I n j u s t one 

place where i t says "attempts o f " i n s t e a d of "attempts by." 

And I t h i n k the r e s t of them are minor. 

And then i n the cross-examination of Mr. Welborn, I 

t h i n k j u s t t o c l a r i f y , "Mr. Fesmire o v e r r u l e d the o b j e c t i o n 

t h a t was made by Mr. P a d i l l a . " 

And I t h i n k t h a t ' s i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner B a i l e y , do you have 

any problems w i t h t h i s ? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I have no problems w i t h t h i s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Nor do I . So counsel, we can — 

MS. BADA: I t h i n k you should move t o have the 
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minutes adopted as r e v i s e d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. At t h i s time, the Chair 

would accept a motion t o adopt the minutes as amended and 

i n s t r u c t the s e c r e t a r y t o make those c o r r e c t i o n s . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I so move. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n fa v o r s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. The minutes w i l l be so 

adopted w i t h the i n s t r u c t i o n s t o the s e c r e t a r y t o make those 

c o r r e c t i o n s . And upon those c o r r e c t i o n s , the Chairman w i l l 

s i g n them and make them p a r t of the record. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I can e-mail them back t o you so 

you a l l get an e l e c t r o n i c v e r s i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. The next i t e m on the agenda 

i s Case No. 14041, the de novo A p p l i c a t i o n of the New Mexico 

O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r a Compliance Order Against Marks 

and Garner Production L t d Company. The Commission d e l i b e r a t e d 

and had d i r e c t e d counsel t o d r a f t an order. Have the 

Commissioners had a chance t o review the order presented by 

counsel? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have. And I b e l i e v e i t 

a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t s the decisions t h a t we reached. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson, d i d you have a 

chance t o look a t i t ? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes, I have, and I agree w i t h 

Commissioner Bai l e y ' s assessment, and I ' l l second t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n fa v o r o f adopting the 

order as the d e c i s i o n of the Commission, s i g n i f y by saying 

"aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. Let the re c o r d r e f l e c t the 

d e c i s i o n was unanimous. The Chair has signed the order and 

w i l l ask Commissioner B a i l e y f o r her s i g n a t u r e . 

And t o Commissioner Olson f o r h i s s i g n a t u r e . 

Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t the order has been 

executed by a l l three Commissioners and t r a n s m i t t e d t o the 

se c r e t a r y f o r r e p o r t i n g . 

The next case on the docket i s Case No. 14074. I t ' s 

the de novo A p p l i c a t i o n of the New Mexico O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n f o r a Compliance Order Against Jackie Brewer d/b/a 

Sandlot Energy. I understand t h a t a t the request o f counsel, 

t h i s case has been continued t o the November 7th s p e c i a l 

s e t t i n g , and the reco r d w i l l so r e f l e c t t h a t . 

The next case i s Case No. 14001. I t ' s the 

A p p l i c a t i o n of Chesapeake E x p l o r a t i o n , LLC, f o r S t a t u t o r y 

U n i t i z a t i o n i n the Quail Queen Un i t i n Lea County, New Mexico. 
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There's a companion case t o t h a t case. I t ' s Case No. 14002, 

the A p p l i c a t i o n o f Chesapeake E x p l o r a t i o n , LLC, f o r Approval 

f o r a Waterflood P r o j e c t and Q u a l i f i c a t i o n of the P r o j e c t f o r 

the Recovered O i l Tax Rate Pursuant t o the Enhanced O i l 

Recovery Act i n Lea County, New Mexico. 

At t h i s time, I'm assuming t h a t counsel agrees w i t h 

the suggestion t h a t we handle both o f those cases 

simultaneously. 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARR: Yes, Mr. Chairman, we do and would request 

t h a t one order be entered as c o n s o l i d a t e d cases. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. At t h i s time, the 

Commission w i l l t h e r e f o r e c a l l Cases No. 14001 and 14002 and 

ask the a t t o r n e y s t o make t h e i r appearances at t h i s time. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission, may name i s 

W i l l i a m F. Carr w i t h the Santa Fe o f f i c e of Holland and Hart, 

LLP. We represent Chesapeake Operating, I nc., i n these 

c o n s o l i d a t e d cases, and I have t h r e e witnesses. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe 

re p r e s e n t i n g P i n t a i l Production Company, Inc. I have no 

witnesses. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr? 

MS. MACQUESTEN: Mr. Chairman, G a i l MacQuesten, 

appearing f o r the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



10 

Mr. Chairman, the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n entered 

i t s appearance t o a l e r t the Commission t o two p o t e n t i a l 

problems i n t h i s case, and I'm here t o r e p o r t t h a t both 

problems have been r e s o l v e d . 

The f i r s t issue was t h a t the o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n was 

not i n the name of the operator of re c o r d of the w e l l s . An 

amended a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d i n the case under the name of the 

c o r r e c t operator. 

The second issue was t h a t the ope r a t o r of record was 

out of compliance w i t h Rule 40 because i t had too many i n a c t i v e 

w e l l s . The operator has entered i n t o an Agreed Compliance 

Order reducing the number of i n a c t i v e w e l l s on the l i s t and i s 

c u r r e n t l y i n compliance of Rule 40. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. MacQuesten, who was the 

p r i o r operator of record? 

MS. MACQUESTEN: Well, the operator of re c o r d never 

changed. The operator of re c o r d was always Chesapeake 

Operating, I n c . The problem was t h a t the a p p l i c a t i o n was 

brought under the name of another Chesapeake e n t i t y . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. And t h a t ' s been resolved t o 

the OCD's s a t i s f a c t i o n ? 

MS. MACQUESTEN: Both the issues have been resolved, 

and the OCD takes no p o s i t i o n on the u n d e r l y i n g issues i n t h i s 

case and won't be p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the case. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Ms. MacQuesten. 
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Mr. Carr, would you ask your witnesses t o stand and 

be sworn, please? 

[Witnesses sworn.] 

MR. CARR: Mr. Chairman, may I gi v e a b r i e f opening 

statement? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

MR. CARR: Mr. Chairman, t h i s case, these 

a p p l i c a t i o n s , were o r i g i n a l l y heard by the D i v i s i o n Examiner on 

November 1st of 2007. At t h a t time, the a p p l i c a t i o n s were 

opposed by P i n t a i l Production Company, Pride Energy Company, 

Gene A. Snow Operating Company. 

B a s i c a l l y t h e i r o b j e c t i o n was t o the p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

formula i n the u n i t agreement. P i n t a i l c a l l e d a witness and 

proposed an a l t e r n a t i v e p a r t i c i p a t i o n formula. An order was 

entered by the D i v i s i o n on June 2nd of 2008. The order 

approved s t a t u t o r y u n i t i z a t i o n . The order approved the 

w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t , but i t imposed a number of c o n d i t i o n s on 

Chesapeake t h a t had t o be met p r i o r t o the commencement of 

ope r a t i o n s . 

Chesapeake looked a t t h i s order and concluded t h a t , 

although the p a r t i c i p a t i o n formula was d i f f e r e n t than what they 

had proposed, i t was a reasonable way t o a l l o c a t e t o the 

var i o u s owners t h e i r r e p e t i t i v e share of the b e n e f i t s of 

u n i t i z a t i o n , and they decided t o go forward i n accordance w i t h 

the D i v i s i o n ' s order. To do t h a t , they amended, as the 
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evidence w i l l show, the u n i t agreement, and they r e s u b m i t t e d i t 

t o the i n t e r e s t owners i n the u n i t area. 

By so doing, they changed the p a r t i c i p a t i o n formula 

and accepted what the Examiner had recommended. So although 

t h i s i s a de novo case, we are not before you proposing what we 

o r i g i n a l l y proposed. We have moved forward through t h a t 

process. And we now have a case where we are asking you t o 

approve what the D i v i s i o n ordered and what we have accepted. 

As Ms. MacQuesten had i n d i c a t e d , I had f i l e d the case 

under the name of Chesapeake E x p l o r a t i o n , LLC, and a c t u a l l y 

i t ' s Chesapeake Operating I n c . t h a t i s a u t h o r i z e d t o operate 

w e l l s under an a p p r o p r i a t e OGRID number. And so a t her 

request, we are i n i t i a t i n g procedures t o change the de s i g n a t i o n 

of operator i n the u n i t agreement. That i s not done, but 

underway. And we r e a d v e r t i s e d the case, and we r e - n o t i f i e d 

everybody, so t h a t t here's no confusion as t o who the 

ap p r o p r i a t e operator i s . 

This matter has been pending f o r about a year. Some 

of i t ' s our f a u l t . We now have Agreed Compliance Order 198, 

and we're i n compliance w i t h Rule 40. We have the a p p l i c a t i o n 

c o r r e c t l y before you. And we're here now i n a de novo s e t t i n g . 

And what we're going t o do i s present our f u l l case t o you 

again, but we have changed the p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r s . And we 

want i t understood t h a t what we are seeking here today i s the 

same t h i n g t h a t the D i v i s i o n ordered at the end of the -- when 
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the order was issued i n June. Because we had been o p e r a t i n g 

under t h a t order f o r a couple of months, we not on l y changed 

the p a r t i c i p a t i o n formula, we have gone out t o other people and 

we've had people r a t i f y t h a t wouldn't r a t i f y b e f o r e . 

So we're not i n a p o s i t i o n j u s t t o r o l l back and run 

t h i s again as i f i t were a new heari n g . So I t h i n k -- t h a t ' s 

something I j u s t wanted t o put i n context at the beginning of 

the case. We've been t r y i n g t o get an approval and the u n i t i n 

place f o r about a year and we would ask t h a t a t the end of t h i s 

h e aring, the order be expedited. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Carr, P i n t a i l i s the 

only n o n - r a t i f y i n g party? Pride and Snow have already 

r a t i f i e d ? 

MR. CARR: No. Pride has r a t i f i e d . Snow has not 

responded. And the r e are a couple o f other very small i n t e r e s t 

owners t h a t simply have not responded t o us. The evidence w i l l 

show t h a t , a t t h i s p o i n t i n time, 96.65 percent of the working 

i n t e r e s t i s committed. And we have a p r e l i m i n a r y approval from 

the Commissioner of Land, and the u n i t i s 100 percent State 

lands where 100 percent of the r o y a l t y would be i n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Very b r i e f l y , Mr. Chairman. P i n t a i l does 

not o b j e c t t o the u n i t i z a t i o n or the w a t e r f l o o d , and would 

encourage, o b v i o u s l y , Chesapeake t o move forward i n the 

o r i g i n a l h earing. 
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P i n t a i l , through i t s owner Mr. Mue l l e r , t h a t ' s 

M - u - e - l - l - e - r , contested the o l d a l l o c a t i o n formula, e s p e c i a l l y 

w i t h respect t o estimated u l t i m a t e recovery. The D i v i s i o n went 

along w i t h him on t h a t , but also a l t e r e d other f a c t o r s which he 

d i d not l i k e . And r a t h e r than go through t h a t now, I t h i n k a t 

the end of the he a r i n g , I can make about a 90-second 

p r e s e n t a t i o n t o say where we d i s p u t e and present P i n t a i l ' s 

p o s i t i o n . 

I ' d r a t h e r j u s t go forward w i t h the evidence a t t h i s 

time. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, c a l l your f i r s t w i t ness. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission, a t t h i s time 

we c a l l Terry Frohnapfel. 

Does everyone have a set of our e x h i b i t s ? We 

p r e - f i l e d them. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: How do you s p e l l Mr. Frohnapfel's 

l a s t name? 

MR. CARR: F-r-o-h-n-a-p-f-e-1. 

TERRENCE ALEXANDER FROHNAPFEL 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. State your name f o r the rec o r d , please. 

A. Terrence Alexander Frohnapfel. 
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Q. Mr. Frohnapfel, where do you reside? 

A. Where am I employed or reside? 

Q. Where do you reside? 

A. I reside i n Edmond, Oklahoma. 

Q. And by whom are you employed? 

A. Chesapeake Energy Corp. 

Q. And what i s your current p o s i t i o n at Chesapeake? 

A. North Permian senior landman. 

Q. And have you previously t e s t i f i e d before the 

New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission? 

A. Not the f u l l Commission, but I have the 

New Mexico O i l Conservation Division. 

Q. Could you review f or the Commission your 

educational background? 

A. Bachelor's of science from Oklahoma State 

University. I have a CPL, which i s a C e r t i f i e d Petroleum 

Landman, r e g i s t r a t i o n , so --

Q. Since graduation, f or whom have you worked? 

A. I've worked for several o i l companies, d i f f e r e n t 

ones i n Tulsa, and three-and-a-half years now for Chesapeake. 

Q. Are you the land person that has been responsible 

for the u n i t i z a t i o n of the Quail Queen u n i t area? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d 

i n each o f these cases? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the s t a t u s of the lands 

i n v o l v e d i n the proposed Quail Queen u n i t area? 

A. Yes. 

MR. CARR: We tender Mr. Frohnapfel as an expert i n 

petroleum land m a t t e r s . 

MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Frohnapfel w i l l be so 

accepted. 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r ) : Mr. Frohnapfel, would you b r i e f l y 

s t a t e what i t i s t h a t Chesapeake Operating, I n c . , seeks i n t h i s 

case? 

A. S t a t u t o r y u n i t i z a t i o n of the proposed Quail Queen 

u n i t , approval of the w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t i n the u n i t area, and 

q u a l i f i c a t i o n of the p r o j e c t f o r i n c e n t i v e t a x r a t e a u t h o r i z e d 

by the New Mexico Enhanced O i l Recovery Act. 

Q. Would you j u s t i d e n t i f y f o r the Commission what 

has been marked as Chesapeake E x h i b i t A? 

A. That's the order No. R-12952. 

Q. And i s i t c o r r e c t t h a t Chesapeake i s asking the 

Commission t o b a s i c a l l y a f f i r m or enter a new order doing the 

same t h i n g t h a t the D i v i s i o n a c t u a l l y d i d i n t h i s case? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Could you i d e n t i f y what has been marked as 

E x h i b i t No. 1 and review t h i s f o r the Commission? 
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A. That's the same as E x h i b i t A t o the u n i t 

agreement. I t shows the proposed u n i t boundary. I t ' s about 

25 miles southwest of Hobbs. The f i e l d was discovered i n 

May 1967, and i t shows a l l the Queen w e l l s . 

Q. And t h i s p l a t also shows a number of acres i n the 

u n i t , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And what i s the character of the l a n d i n t h i s 

u n i t ? 

A. I t ' s 100 percent State land. 

Q. And the r e are 840 acres; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Right. 

Q. Let's go t o E x h i b i t No. 2. Would you i d e n t i f y 

t h a t , please? 

A. That's the standard form t h a t the State l i k e s t o 

use. I t ' s State fee, provides f o r w a t e r f l o o d i n g , sets out the 

basis f o r p a r t i c i p a t i o n f o r a l l i n t e r e s t owners i n the u n i t i z e d 

substances. 

Q. Has t h i s u n i t agreement been r e v i s e d i n 

accordance w i t h the order of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t s t i l l bears the name of -- l e t ' s see --

Chesapeake E x p l o r a t i o n , LLC; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. And they are e n t i t l e d . 

Q. And are you undertaking a p p r o p r i a t e procedures t o 
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change t h a t t o Chesapeake Operating? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are t h e r e any o t h e r changes i n the u n i t agreement 

when you compare t h i s one t o the one t h a t we presented t o the 

Examiner? 

A. Just other than the t r a c t p a r t i c i p a t i n g f a c t o r s 

and the i n t e r e s t amounts on some of the e x h i b i t s , but 

e v e r y t h i n g e l s e remains the same. 

Q. Let's go t o E x h i b i t No. 3. Would you i d e n t i f y 

t h i s , please? 

A. I t ' s the l i s t i n g t h a t shows p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the 

u n i t area by t r a c t . I t ' s the t r a c t p a r t i c i p a t i n g f a c t o r s . 

I t ' s the same as E x h i b i t C i n the u n i t agreement. 

Q. And p l a c i n g a 40-percent weight on u l t i m a t e 

primary and pore volume, those were, i n f a c t , what was ordered 

by the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i s E x h i b i t No. 4? 

A. That's the name changes f o r a l l the w e l l s , 

r e - d e s i g n a t i o n of names. 

Q. And E x h i b i t 5? 

A. That i s the u n i t o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. B a s i c a l l y , t h i s i s the same agreement t h a t was 

presented before? 

A. They're a l l the same. 
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Q. Some schedules have been r e v i s e d , but the t e x t i s 

the same? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. Could you r e f e r t o Chesapeake E x h i b i t No. 6 and 

b a s i c a l l y e x p l a i n t o the Commission what t h i s i s ? 

A. Okay. That was a l e t t e r t h a t we sent out August 

29 of '07, the f i r s t c o n tact t h a t we made t o a l l the i n t e r e s t 

owners t a l k i n g about the u n i t agreement, u n i t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement, r a t i f i c a t i o n s , e l e c t i o n b a l l o t , and the f e a s i b i l i t y 

study -- j u s t our plan t o do the w a t e r f l o o d . 

Q. And was t h i s your f i r s t e f f o r t t o o b t a i n a 

v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the proposed u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I ' d ask you t o go out of order and go t o E x h i b i t 

No. 8. 

A. Okay. The noti c e ? 

Q. I s E x h i b i t No. 8 the copy o f the l e t t e r by which 

you t r a n s m i t t e d the r e v i s e d u n i t agreement t o the i n t e r e s t 

owners i n the u n i t as r e q u i r e d by the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Attached t o the u n i t agreement, were o p e r a t i n g 

agreement forms -- or an o p e r a t i n g agreement and r a t i f i c a t i o n 

forms; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's -- what i s the s t a t u s a t t h i s 
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time of the v o l u n t a r y commitment t o the u n i t o f the working 

i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. The working i n t e r e s t owners, 96.65 percent have 

approved. We've got p r e l i m i n a r y approval from 100 percent o f 

the m i n e r a l i n t e r e s t ownership. 

Q. As t o P i n t a i l , what i s the s t a t u s of your 

n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h them? 

A. We've t a l k e d t o them s e v e r a l times on the phone 

and they s t i l l have a problem w i t h the TPF, the pool volume. 

Q. Have you been able t o reach an agreement w i t h 

P i n t a i l ? 

A. No. 

Q. What about Pride Energy? 

A. Pride Energy has approved the new u n i t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement, the u n i t agreement. 

Q. Have they agreed t o the new p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

formulas? 

A. They have r a t i f i e d the whole p l a n . 

Q. What about the Gene A. Snow i n t e r e s t . Have you 

heard from them? 

A. We have not go t t e n a response back from them. 

They v e r b a l l y have not opposed the u n i t , but they have j u s t 

f a i l e d t o respond. 

Q. Could you r e f e r t o what has been marked 

Chesapeake E x h i b i t No. 7 and i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Commission? 
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A. Okay. That's the p r e l i m i n a r y approval l e t t e r 

from the Commissioner of Land O f f i c e . 

Q. This i s the approval l e t t e r dated September 27, 

2007; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. R i g h t . 

Q. And would you then would jump out of order again 

and go t o what has been marked E x h i b i t No 26. What i s t h a t ? 

A. Revised p r e l i m i n a r y approval l e t t e r . 

Q. And t h i s approval l e t t e r was, i n f a c t , r e c eived 

a f t e r we p r e - f i l e d our e x h i b i t s ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Co r r e c t . 

Q. You resu b m i t t e d the u n i t documents t o the Land 

O f f i c e ? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. And you again have t h e i r p r e l i m i n a r y approval? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When the land o f f i c e --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I don't t h i n k we have a copy 

of 26. 

MR. CARR: You know why you don't have a copy of 2 6 

i s because we rec e i v e d i t a f t e r we p r e - f i l e d . And I ' l l give 

you the o r i g i n a l . I f you would l i k e a d d i t i o n a l copies, I w i l l 

p r ovide t h a t . 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, w i t h your permission, 

may the c o u r t r e p o r t e r have the o r i g i n a l or would you l i k e t o 

make a copy? 

MR. CARR: You have my permission, i f you d e s i r e , 

Mr. Chairman — an y t h i n g . 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r ) : Mr. Frohnapfel, do you b e l i e v e 

you've done a l l t h a t you can reasonably can do t o o b t a i n 

v o l u n t a r y commitment t o t h i s u n i t plan? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has Chesapeake made a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o o b t a i n 

v o l u n t a r y u n i t i z a t i o n of a l l the owners' working r o y a l t y i n the 

area a f f e c t e d by the a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. W i l l Chesapeake c a l l a d d i t i o n a l witnesses t o 

review the t e c h n i c a l p o r t i o n s of t h i s case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, E x h i b i t 8, t h a t you p r e v i o u s l y referenced, 

were l e t t e r s t o the i n t e r e s t owners i n the u n i t p r o v i d i n g them 

w i t h copies of the new u n i t agreement; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And E x h i b i t No. 9 i s what? 

A. The Notice of A f f i d a v i t of the w a t e r f l o o d . 

Q. And t h i s i s the one t h a t was sent f o r t h i s 

hearing today? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And then what i s E x h i b i t 27, which the Commission 

also may not have -- Notice of A f f i d a v i t ? 

A. Notice of A f f i d a v i t . 

Q. I s t h i s the n o t i c e t h a t --

A. Corrects the name of the a p p l i c a n t . 

MR. CARR: And Mr. Chairman, w i t h your permission, I 

w i l l p r o v i d e a copy of the Notice of A f f i d a v i t and give i t t o 

the c o u r t r e p o r t e r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r ) : Mr. Frohnapfel, were E x h i b i t s 1 

through 9 and 27 and A compiled by you or prepared under your 

d i r e c t i o n and supervision? 

A. Yes.. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And 26. 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r ) : And 26. 

A. And 26. 

Q. A, 1 through 9, 26 and 27: Were those compiled 

under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, I move the 

admission of these e x h i b i t s i n t o evidence. 

MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t s 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 

9, 26 and 27 w i l l be so admitted. 
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MS. BADA: And A. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And A. 

[A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s A and 1 through 9 and 2 6 and 27 

admitted i n t o evidence.] 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes my examination o f 

Mr. Frohnapfel. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: I have no questions of the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And nor do I . 

MR. CARR: At t h i s time -- and we're t r y i n g t o meet 

an a i r p l a n e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Frohnapfel, thank you very 

much. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission, a t t h i s t ime 

I would c a l l Mr. Robert M a r t i n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. M a r t i n ? This h e a r i n g i s i n 

h i g h gear now, a i n ' t i t ? 

ROBERT LEE WILLIS MARTIN, I I 

a f t e r hav ing been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oa th , 

was ques t ioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 
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DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you state your name f o r the record, please 

A. Robert Lee W i l l i s Martin, I I . 

Q. Mr. Martin, where do you reside? 

A. In Edmond, Oklahoma. 

Q. And by whom are you employed? 

A. Chesapeake. 

Q. And what i s your p o s i t i o n with Chesapeake 

A. Senior geologist with the Permian North. 

Q. Have you previously t e s t i f i e d before the Oi l 

Conservation Commission? 

A. I have t e s t i f i e d before the Commission, but not 

the f u l l Commission. 

Q. Would you review f o r the Commission your 

e d u c a t i o n a l background and your work experience? 

A. Graduated i n 1982 from Texas Tech w i t h a Bachelor 

of science i n geology, worked i n Midland f o r 26 years f o r 

vario u s o i l companies doing e x p l o r a t i o n and development, and 

t h i s l a s t t h r e e years w i t h Chesapeake i n Oklahoma C i t y . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d i n 

these cases? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you made a g e o l o g i c a l study of the p o r t i o n 

of the Quail Queen pool t h a t ' s i n v o l v e d i n t h i s case? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And are you prepared t o share the r e s u l t s of your 

s t u d i e s w i t h the O i l Conservation Commission? 

A. Yes. 

MR. CARR: Are the witnesses' q u a l i f i c a t i o n s 

acceptable? 

MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The witness w i l l be admitted as an 

expert i n petroleum geology. 

Q. Mr. M a r t i n , have you prepared e x h i b i t s f o r 

p r e s e n t a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Would you r e f e r t o what has been marked as 

Chesapeake E x h i b i t No. 10 and review t h i s f o r the Commission? 

A. E x h i b i t 10 i s what we're using as a type l o g . 

I t ' s also the l o g t h a t w e ' l l always r e f e r back t o when we want 

to t a l k about the d i f f e r e n t zones of the Queen t h a t we w i l l be 

w a t e r f l o o d i n g . B a s i c a l l y , i t j u s t shows t h a t we have the 

Queen B and the Queen C designated. And i t w i l l also be noted 

on the map t h a t I ' l l show next where t h a t w e l l i s l o c a t e d . 

Q. And t h i s includes the e n t i r e i n t e r v a l t o be 

u n i t i z e d ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Generally describe f o r the Commission the nature 

of the Queen f o r m a t i o n i n t h i s area. 
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A. Okay. I t does c o n s i s t o f , l i k e I s a i d , the two 

sands t h a t w e ' l l be mainly d e a l i n g w i t h , the Queen B and the 

Queen C sands. These are shallow s h e l f sands, and b a s i c a l l y 

the C sand i s the one t h a t w e ' l l focus the most on and i s the 

one t h a t ' s been producing the most i n t h i s f i e l d . 

Q. Let's go t o E x h i b i t No. 11. I d e n t i f y t h a t , 

please. 

A. E x h i b i t 11 i s a s t r u c t u r e map of the top of 

Queen, and i t b a s i c a l l y j u s t shows d i p going from n o r t h t o 

south. I t shows the s t r a t o g r a p h i c nature of the Queen where we 

don't have a clos u r e f o r a t r a p -- t h a t we have a s t r a t o g r a p h i c 

t r a p . 

Q. And l e t ' s go t o E x h i b i t 12 the n o r t h / s o u t h cross 

s e c t i o n . 

A. The cross s e c t i o n j u s t d e f i n e d . Our s t r u c t u r e , 

i t shows the t a r g e t zones and the c o n t i n u i t y o f the sands 

w i t h i n the u n i t i t s e l f . As you can see, the Queen B and the 

Queen C are f a i r l y c o n s i s t e n t across the f i e l d . 

Q. And the type l o g i s also shown on the cross 

section? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . I t ' s No. 4. 

Q. Other than showing the c o n t i n u i t y of the 

r e s e r v o i r i n the area, i s the r e a n y t h i n g i n p a r t i c u l a r t h i s 

e x h i b i t has been presented f o r ? 

A. I t ' s j u s t more f o r the c o n t i n u i t y . 
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Q. Okay. Let's take a look a t your p o r o s i t y maps. 

Let's go t o E x h i b i t 13, and I ' d ask you t o review t h i s f o r the 

Commission. 

A. You d i d say 13, r i g h t ? 

Q. Yes. The Queen B isopach. 

A. Okay. As you've seen on the cross s e c t i o n , what 

we d i d was we got an isopach map of e v e r y t h i n g t h a t ' s g r e a t e r 

than 14 percent p o r o s i t y mapped out, and t h i s i s an isopach of 

t h a t Queen B i n t e r v a l w i t h i n the u n i t . 

Q. You've also shown the boundary of the u n i t on 

t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

A. Right. The boundary i s the green l i n e . The 

orange are Queen producers. 

Q. Okay. Let's go t o your next e x h i b i t , the isopach 

on the Queen C. 

A. Same type of map except f o r the Queen C 

fo r m a t i o n , using a 14 percent c u t o f f i n p o r o s i t y . And the same 

t h i n g , we've got the o u t l i n e . 

Q. And the t r i a n g l e i n the center of the e x h i b i t ? 

A. That i s the type l o g . 

Q. What g e o l o g i c a l conclusions can you reach from 

your study of t h i s area? 

A. That t h i s i s a good candidate f o r a w a t e r f l o o d . 

We've got great examples a l l around us i n the Queen t h a t have 

been waterf l o o d e d . And we do have a continuous r e s e r v o i r 
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w i t h i n the w a t e r f l o o d u n i t o u t l i n e . 

Q. And you are c o n f i d e n t t h a t the r e s e r v o i r i s 

adequately defined? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can the p o r t i o n of the pool t h a t ' s i n c l u d e d i n 

the proposed u n i t , i n your o p i n i o n , from a g e o l o g i c a l p o i n t of 

view, be e f f i c i e n t and e f f e c t i v e l y operated under the u n i t p l a n 

and development? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 10 through 14 prepared by you? 

A. Yes. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission, I move the 

admission of E x h i b i t s 10 through 14. 

MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t s 10 through 14 w i l l be 

admitted. 

[ A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s 10 through 14 admitted i n t o 

evidence.] 

MR. CARR: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. M a r t i n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Just one qu e s t i o n . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. M a r t i n , the hydrocarbon pore volume, was t h a t 
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based on your maps 13 and 14? 

A. Yes. The engineer used those maps f o r h i s 

c a l c u l a t i o n s ; t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Thank you. That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Nor do I , Mr. Carr. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission, at t h i s 

time, we would c a l l Greg Adams. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Adams? 

GREGORY GROVE ADAMS 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your name f o r the record, please, 

A. Gregory Grove Adams. 

Q. And Mr. Adams, where do you reside? 

A. Edmond, Oklahoma. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. Chesapeake. 

Q. And what i s your c u r r e n t p o s i t i o n w i t h 

Chesapeake? 
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A. Senior r e s e r v o i r engineer f o r the Permian North. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d b e fore the 

New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission? 

A. The D i v i s i o n , but not the f u l l Commission. 

Q. Would you review your e d u c a t i o n a l background and 

work experience f o r the Commissioners? 

A. I n 1980 I re c e i v e d a Bachelor's of science i n 

mechanical engineering from Texas A&M U n i v e r s i t y . My work 

experience has i n c l u d e d s e v e r a l o i l and gas companies, the 

f i r s t 23 years i n Houston w i t h s e v e r a l o i l and gas companies 

and c o n s u l t i n g f i r m s . And then since 2004 i n Oklahoma, Tulsa 

and Oklahoma C i t y , f o r Vintage Petroleum f i r s t and now 

Chesapeake since December of '04. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d i n 

the c o n s o l i d a t e d cases? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you made an engineering study o f the area 

t h a t ' s i n v o l v e d i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you prepared t o share the r e s u l t s of your 

work w i t h the Commission? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. CARR: We tender Mr. Adams as an expert i n 

petroleum engineering. 

MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Adams, are you a l i c e n s e d 

p r o f e s s i o n a l engineer? 

THE WITNESS: No, I am not. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Adams w i l l be admi t t e d as an 

expert i n petroleum engineering. 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r ) : Mr. Adams, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h 

the New Mexico S t a t u t o r y U n i t i z a t i o n Act? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you prepared e x h i b i t s f o r p r e s e n t a t i o n i n 

t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Would you r e f e r t o what has been marked as 

Chesapeake E x h i b i t 15 and review t h a t f o r the Commission? 

A. This i s an executive summary t h a t was taken out 

of the f e a s i b i l i t y study. I t ' s j u s t g i v i n g p e r t i n e n t 

i n f o r m a t i o n about the proposed u n i t , where i t ' s l o c a t e d , the 

form a t i o n t h a t ' s being proposed t o be flooded. There's 12 

a c t i v e w e l l s t h a t are c u r r e n t l y producing. Three have been 

t e m p o r a r i l y abandoned. Five have been plugged and abandoned, 

and there's one dry hole. 

I t shows d a i l y p r o d u c t i o n of about 23 b a r r e l s of o i l 

per day; r e s e r v o i r parameters showing the depth a t 5100 f e e t ; 

the p r o d u c t i v e area; the u n i t i z e d area; the i n i t i a l r e s e r v o i r 

pressure was 1850 pounds; the c u r r e n t i s about 450 pounds. 

And then the second -- the bottom h a l f of t h a t 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4 t h S t r e e t , NW, S u i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

33 

e x h i b i t shows some p e r t i n e n t r e s e r v o i r i n f o r m a t i o n , i n c l u d i n g 

the o r i g i n a l o i l i n place of about f o u r - a n d - a - h a l f m i l l i o n 

b a r r e l s of o i l ; cumulative primary recovery through J u l y 1 s t , 

2007, of about 790,000 b a r r e l s ; the u l t i m a t e primary of 

867,000 b a r r e l s , which w i l l give you a primary e f f i c i e n c y of 

19 percent; and, 91 percent of the primary has been recovered 

through 7/07. 

I t also l i s t s towards the bottom the estimated 

secondary reserves t h a t we a n t i c i p a t e t o recover of about 

725,000 000 b a r r e l s of o i l , which w i l l g i v e us a t o t a l 

recovery, primary and secondary, of about 1.6 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s , 

g i v i n g us a t o t a l recovery e f f i c i e n c y of about 36 percent. 

Q. Let's go t o Chesapeake E x h i b i t No. 16, and I ' d 

ask you t o review f o r the Commission why t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

r e s e r v o i r i s a good candidate f o r a w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t . 

A. One of the t h i n g s we look f o r i n r e s e r v o i r 

e ngineering i n t r y i n g t o i d e n t i f y candidates f o r w a t e r f l o o d i n g 

i s p i l o t s t h a t have been done as w e l l as s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l 

w e l l s t h a t have been i n j e c t i n g water i n t o the proposed 

f o r m a t i o n , i n t h i s case, the Queen. 

And i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r f i e l d , we d i d have a s a l t w a t e r 

d i s p o s a l w e l l i n the middle of the f i e l d t h a t was dis p o s i n g of 

water f o r s e v e r a l years, from 1997 u n t i l 2004. And i t showed 

some response from the o f f s e t producers t o t h i s d i s p o s a l w e l l , 

which i s an i n d i c a t i o n t h a t i n j e c t i n g water i n t o t h i s proposed 
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producing f o r m a t i o n w i l l have the d e s i r e d e f f e c t upon the 

o f f s e t producing w e l l s i n r e c o v e r i n g a d d i t i o n a l o i l i n place 

and i n c r e a s i n g the pressure i n the r e s e r v o i r so t h a t a d d i t i o n a l 

o i l can be produced. 

Q. And the i n f o r m a t i o n on E x h i b i t 16 shows t h a t 

response i n the o f f s e t t i n g w e l l s ? 

A. Ri g h t . The f o u r o f f s e t w e l l s t o the i n j e c t i o n , 

or d i s p o s a l w e l l , i n t h i s case. 

Q. What i s E x h i b i t No. 17? 

A. E x h i b i t No. 17 i s another method t h a t we use t o 

determine candidates f o r w a t e r f l o o d i n g . And i n t h i s case, i t ' s 

an o f f s e t Q u a il -- not Quail -- but Queen u n i t c a l l e d the West 

Pearl Queen u n i t t h a t ' s l o c a t e d about three-and-a-half miles t o 

the southeast of our proposed Quail Queen u n i t . This 

p a r t i c u l a r u n i t was u n i t i z e d i n 1964 and has recovered q u i t e a 

b i t of secondary o i l . And i f you look at the logs, i t has 

b a s i c a l l y the same p r o d u c t i v e i n t e r v a l t h a t we propose t o t u r n 

i n t o a w a t e r f l o o d at the Quail Queen. 

Q. Now, the t r a c t p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r s t h a t were 

ordered by the D i v i s i o n , are they the same t r a c t p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

f a c t o r s t h a t , i n f a c t , were used i n the West Pearl Queen u n i t ? 

A. I've never seen them, but according t o Mr. W i l l 

Jones, who was the Examiner i n t h a t f i r s t h earing, I do know 

t h a t they used -- u l t i m a t e recovery and pore volume were two of 

the parameters t h a t they used and weighted h e a v i l y . 
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Q. When you looked a t the parameters contained i n 

the OCD order, what impact d i d t h a t have on Chesapeake's 

i n t e r e s t i n the u n i t area? 

A. We a c t u a l l y l o s t approximately 4 percent working 

i n t e r e s t as a r e s u l t o f making t h a t proposed change. 

Q. Was i t Chesapeake's d e t e r m i n a t i o n t h a t , even i n 

view of t h a t l o s s , t h a t using those parameters was s t i l l a 

reasonable way t o a l l o c a t e the b e n e f i t s o f u n i t i z a t i o n t o the 

owners i n the u n i t area? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's go t o E x h i b i t No. 18. Would you e x p l a i n 

t h a t , please? 

A. I mentioned the o f f s e t West Pearl Queen u n i t . 

This i s j u s t a number of parameters l a y i n g side by side showing 

the comparison of the two. Of course, t h e i r s , the West Pearl 

Queen u n i t , had secondary recovery o p e r a t i o n s going on since 

1964. And then we have our proposed parameters on the l e f t 

side and what we a n t i c i p a t e what the recovery w i l l be. And 

some of the other r e s e r v o i r e f f e c t s t h a t would take place as a 

r e s u l t of the w a t e r f l o o d . And as you can see, even though the 

West Pearl Queen u n i t i s about three times bigger from a 

surface area s t a n d p o i n t as the Quail Queen u n i t , a l o t of the 

recovery e f f i c i e n c i e s and p o r o s i t i e s and r e s e r v o i r 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s are very s i m i l a r . 

Q. Let's t a l k now about the p a r t i c i p a t i o n formula i n 
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the new u n i t agreement. I ' d ask you t o r e f e r t o E x h i b i t 19. 

F i r s t of a l l , i s t h i s e x h i b i t s i m i l a r t o the e x h i b i t presented 

l a s t year? 

A. Yes. I t ' s s i m i l a r except i t does i n c o r p o r a t e the 

changes t h a t the D i v i s i o n Examiner recommended i n h i s order. 

Q. Okay. Can you review t h i s , please? 

A. I t shows the fo u r d i f f e r e n t parameters t h a t we 

used were the usable w e l l bores, the c u r r e n t p r o d u c t i o n r a t e , 

the u l t i m a t e primary recovery, and the r e s e r v o i r pore volume. 

I t shows the percent t h a t each one of the t r a c t s 

p a r t i c i p a t e s -- or the percentage t h a t i t a c t u a l l y has whenever 

you c a l c u l a t e the percentage of the t o t a l -- and then the TPFs 

were determined based on using the weight f a c t o r s t h a t the 

Examiner recommended; t h a t being 10 percent on usable w e l l 

bores, 10 percent on the c u r r e n t r a t e , 40 percent on u l t i m a t e 

primary, and 40 percent on the r e s e r v o i r pore volume. 

Once a l l those f a c t o r s and we i g h t i n g f a c t o r s are 

plugged i n t o the formula f o r the TPFs, then the a c t u a l TPFs f o r 

each t r a c t i s r e a l i z e d t h e r e shown on the r i g h t - h a n d column of 

t h a t E x h i b i t No. 19. 

Q. Okay. What we've done i s we've adopted the 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r s ordered by the OCD? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i n your o p i n i o n , w i l l u sing these f a c t o r s 

reasonably a l l o c a t e the b e n e f i t s of a l l owners i n the u n i t ? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. W i l l u n i t i z a t i o n and adoption of the proposed 

u n i t i z a t i o n benefit a l l working i n t e r e s t owners and a l l 

non-cost bearing i n t e r e s t owners i n the affected properties? 

A. Yes, i t w i l l . 

Q. Let's t a l k now about the waterflood p r o j e c t . 

Would you look at what has been marked Chesapeake Exh i b i t 

No. 20 and review that f or the Commission? 

A. I t ' s j u s t a base map that shows the proposed 

un i t i z e d boundary, 840 acres. I t shows the current producing 

wells, which are the green c i r c l e s , and the proposed conversion 

wells. 

There w i l l be six wells that are i n i t i a l l y converted 

from producing wells to i n j e c t i o n wells. And we're going to be 

developing 40-acre f i v e spots -- I'm sorry -- 80-acre f i v e 

spots. The wells were d r i l l e d on 40s and, therefore, the 

waterflood pattern w i l l be an 80-acre five-spot pattern. 

Q. What does Exhibit 21 show us? 

A. Exhibit 21 i s the future u n i t as we foresee i t 

several years out i n t o the future whenever we see ad d i t i o n a l 

response from some of the producers. There's an area down to 

the southeast that needs to be bett e r developed. And we need 

to r e - d r i l l a w e l l , re-enter a w e l l , and d r i l l a new i n j e c t i o n 

well down there i n the southeastern part of the u n i t . 

Q. What does Exhibit No. 22 show? 
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A. E x h i b i t 22 i s an e s t i m a t i o n of the o i l p r o d u c t i o n 

beginning i n 2008 whenever we a n t i c i p a t e i n j e c t i o n beginning, 

and then throughout the l i f e of t h a t w a t e r f l o o d u n i t . 

Q. What does E x h i b i t 23 show us? A c t u a l l y , what we 

need t o do i s go t o the p o r t i o n of the case i n v o l v i n g the 

w a t e r f l o o d a p p l i c a t i o n . We need t o a c t u a l l y go now t o 

E x h i b i t No. 24, the C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Does t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n c o n t a i n a l l i n f o r m a t i o n 

r e q u i r e d by form C-108? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s i t an expansion of an e x i s t i n g p r o j e c t ? 

A. No. 

Q. How many w e l l s are i n c l u d e d w i t h i n t h i s 

a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Six w e l l s . 

Q. And does Chesapeake seek a u t h o r i t y t o commit 

a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s t o i n j e c t i o n i n orthodox and unorthodox 

l o c a t i o n s through a d m i n i s t r a t i v e procedures i n accordance w i t h 

the D i v i s i o n Rule 701? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, E x h i b i t 24, would you j u s t simply review 

t h i s f o r the Commission? This e x h i b i t shows the l o c a t i o n of 

each i n j e c t i o n w e l l ; does i t not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t has p l a t s t h a t show a l l w e l l s w i t h i n two miles 
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of each of these i n j e c t i o n wells? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Lease ownership i s r e f l e c t e d ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n the area of review f o r each w e l l ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Does the e x h i b i t c o n t a i n a l l i n f o r m a t i o n r e q u i r e d 

by the OCD f o r each w e l l i n any of the areas o f review t h a t 

penetrate the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And i s t h a t data presented by i n d i v i d u a l 

i n j e c t i o n s w e l l s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the r e plugged and abandoned w e l l s w i t h i n any 

area of review? 

A. Yes, s e v e r a l . 

Q. And you have diagrammatic sketches i n t h i s 

e x h i b i t showing a l l p l u g g i n g d e t a i l s ? 

A. Rig h t . 

Q. Have you reviewed the data a v a i l a b l e on the w e l l s 

w i t h i n the areas of review f o r t h i s w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t and 

s a t i s f i e d y o u r s e l f t h a t there i s no remedial work r e q u i r e d on 

any of these w e l l s t o enable Chesapeake t o s a f e l y operate t h i s 

p r o j e c t ? 

A. Yes. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. The OCD, i n the o r i g i n a l order, requested t h a t we 

do c e r t a i n t h i n g s t o v a r i o u s w e l l s . I s Chesapeake prepared t o 

meet a l l the requirements o f t h a t o r i g i n a l order? 

A. Yes. Several have already been met, and there 

are several -- j u s t a few t h a t are l e f t t h a t we're working on 

p r e s e n t l y . 

Q. But Chesapeake has been going forward under the 

order as entered by the D i v i s i o n ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you are i n t e n d i n g t o comply w i t h a l l 

p r o v i s i o n s of t h a t order? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you w i l l comply w i t h whatever t h i s Commission 

does as well? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. What i s -- what i n j e c t i o n volumes i s Chesapeake 

proposing? 

A. I n i t i a l l y we're r e q u e s t i n g about 1,000 b a r r e l s 

per day f o r each i n j e c t i o n w e l l , and we expect t h a t t o drop o f f 

as the pressure b u i l d s . 

Q. What i s the source of the i n j e c t i o n water? 

A. C u r r e n t l y , we have a water source i n the form of 

a d i s p o s a l system about three miles t o the southeast where 

we're going t o l a y a flow l i n e from t h a t d i s p o s a l system. And 

the water w i l l be taken from several w e l l s t h a t are h a u l i n g 
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t h e i r water t o t h i s d i s p o s a l system. And w e ' l l be using t h a t 

water as the water source. 

Q. Well, w i l l Chesapeake use any freshwater on t h i s 

p r o j ect? 

A. No. 

Q. And i s a water a n a l y s i s of t h i s water from the 

di s p o s a l system i n c l u d e d i n E x h i b i t No. 24? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s t h i s going t o be an open or a closed system? 

A. I t ' l l be closed. 

Q. And what i n j e c t i o n pressure are you proposing? 

A. I n i t i a l l y , I t h i n k we're asking f o r 3,000 pounds. 

That may or may not be r e q u i r e d , but we t h i n k t h a t w i l l be the 

absolute maximum t h a t w e ' l l ever use. 

Q. W i l l a surface i n j e c t i o n pressure of two-tenths 

pound f o r f u l l depth t o the top of the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l be 

s a t i s f a c t o r y f o r Chesapeake's purposes? 

A. Yes. I n i t i a l l y , t h a t w i l l be -- w e ' l l be doing 

s t e p - r a t e t e s t i n g i n the f u t u r e t o be able t o increase t h a t 

pressure. 

Q. And what i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of the w e l l s --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: Yes? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Can we — since we're — I thought 

he j u s t s a i d t h a t the i n j e c t i o n pressure would be 3,000 pounds, 
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and then t e s t i f i e d t h a t .2 p s i per f o o t would be adequate. At 

5100 f e e t , t h a t ' s --

THE WITNESS: I'm s o r r y . I must have misunderstood. 

3,000 pounds would be the downhole pressure t h a t we would 

expect. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r ) : And what i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of 

the w e l l s t h a t Chesapeake i s proposing t o u t i l i z e i n t h i s 

i n j e c t i o n p r o j e c t ? Are they — 

A. I'm s o r r y . Could you repeat t h a t ? 

Q. What i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of the i n j e c t i o n 

w e l l s ? 

A. They're c u r r e n t l y producing w e l l s . 

Q. W i l l Chesapeake monitor the w e l l s t o ensure the 

i n t e g r i t y of the w e l l bores? 

A. Yes. There w i l l a packer i n the hole i n each one 

of the i n j e c t i o n w e l l s . And w e ' l l monitor t h a t casing's 

annulus pressure. 

Q. And y o u ' l l comply w i t h a l l the requirements of 

the f e d e r a l underground i n j e c t i o n c o n t r o l program? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l the proposed i n j e c t i o n i n 

these w e l l s propose any t h r e a t t o groundwater or any source of 

d r i n k i n g water? 

A. No. 
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Q. Are the r e freshwater zones i n the area? 

A. Yes, the r e i s . 

Q. And what are they, do you know? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t ' s O g a l l a l a . 

Q. And no i n j e c t i o n w i l l be proposed i n t o the 

O g a l l a l a , obviously? 

A. No. 

Q. I t remains a shallow water producing zone i n the 

area -- or shallow water zone i n the area? 

A. I t comes and goes. I t ' s p r e t t y sporadic, but 

yes, t h a t i s the only f r e s h water zone t h a t I know o f . 

Q. Are the r e any freshwater w e l l s w i t h i n a m i l e o f 

any i n j e c t i o n w e l l ? 

A. No, not t o my knowledge. We have t e s t e d and 

checked a l l the i n j e c t i o n w e l l s i n the area, and we've done 

water analyses on them so we can get a ba s e l i n e on the 

composition of the water i n those freshwater w e l l s . 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l the i n j e c t i o n as proposed 

by Chesapeake pose a t h r e a t t o any groundwater i n the area? 

A. No. 

Q. Have you examined the a v a i l a b l e engineering and 

geologic i n f o r m a t i o n on t h i s r e s e r v o i r , and as a r e s u l t of t h a t 

examination, have you found any evidence have of f a u l t s or 

other h y d r o l o g i c connections between the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l and 

any underground source of d r i n k i n g water? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

44 

A. No. 

Q. Let's go now t o what's been marked as Chesapeake 

E x h i b i t 23, the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r q u a l i f i c a t i o n as an enhanced 

o i l recovery p r o j e c t . That's E x h i b i t 23. 

Mr. Adams, does t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n meet a l l the 

requirements of D i v i s i o n r u l e s t o q u a l i f y a p r o j e c t f o r the 

i n c e n t i v e t a x rate? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What are the estimated a d d i t i o n a l c a p i t a l costs 

t o be i n c u r r e d i n t h i s p r o j e c t expansion? 

A. The t o t a l c a p i t a l costs a n t i c i p a t e d i s around $5 

m i l l i o n . 

Q. And what are the t o t a l p r o j e c t costs i n a d d i t i o n 

t o the c a p i t a l cost, do you know? 

A. Well, i n a d d i t i o n t o the c a p i t a l costs, there's 

going t o be o p e r a t i n g costs t h a t w i l l be i n c u r r e d on an ongoing 

ba s i s . And we estimate t h a t ' s going t o be approximately $2000 

to $2500 per w e l l per month. 

Q. How much a d d i t i o n a l p r o d u c t i o n does Chesapeake 

expect t o obtain? 

A. The c u r r e n t p r o d u c t i o n i s around 22 t o 25 b a r r e l s 

of o i l per day. And whenever we reach peak p r o d u c t i o n , we 

a n t i c i p a t e a r a t e of about 100 t o 150 b a r r e l s of o i l per day. 

Q. And t h i s e x h i b i t sets f o r t h the t o t a l value of 

a d d i t i o n a l p r o d u c t i o n ; does i t not? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And do you know what t h a t number i s ? 

A. Based on $70 o i l , which i s q u i t e a b i t less than 

we're r e c e i v i n g c u r r e n t l y , the economics show net o p e r a t i n g 

income of $32 m i l l i o n over the l i f e of the p r o j e c t . I f you 

discount t h a t at 10 percent, i t ' s $9 m i l l i o n . 

Q. And then, attached t o your a p p l i c a t i o n -- again 

the p l a t of the u n i t area, type l o g , and p r o d u c t i o n curves, 

some of them have been p r e v i o u s l y presented i n t h i s case; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Adams, w i t h o u t u n i t i z e d management o p e r a t i o n 

and f u r t h e r development i n the u n i t area, do you b e l i e v e t h a t 

these a d d i t i o n a l reserves w i l l , i n f a c t , be wasted? 

A. Yes, they w i l l . 

Q. I s u n i t i z e d management o p e r a t i o n f o r the 

development of the poo l t h a t i s the su b j e c t of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n 

necessary t o e f f e c t i v e l y c a r r y out a secondary recovery 

o p e r a t i o n i n the u n i t area? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l approval of the a p p l i c a t i o n 

and implementation of the p r o j e c t r e s u l t i n the p r e v e n t i o n o f 

waste of hydrocarbons and p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s of a l l 

i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , yes. 
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Q. Would you i d e n t i f y what's been marked as 

Chesapeake E x h i b i t 25? 

A. This i s the w a t e r f l o o d f e a s i b i l i t y study t h a t I 

performed and sent t o a l l the working i n t e r e s t owners and the 

State, who i s the only m i n e r a l i n t e r e s t owner, f o r t h e i r review 

and comments and approval. 

Q. And does i t c o n t a i n a n a r r a t i v e d i s c u s s i o n of the 

g e o l o g i c a l and engine e r i n g c o n s i d e r a t i o n s t h a t have been 

presented here today by you and Mr. Martin? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How soon does Chesapeake a n t i c i p a t e commencing 

enhanced recovery o p e r a t i o n s i n the u n i t area? 

A. We would hope t o , i f the order i s re c e i v e d by 

October 1st, t h a t we would be able t o begin the c a p i t a l 

expenditures immediately on c o n v e r t i n g w e l l s t o producing and 

also l a y i n g the p i p e l i n e from the water source, the 

three-and-a-half miles t o our u n i t and h o p e f u l l y have water 

going i n t o the ground before the end of the year. 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 15 through 25 prepared by you? 

A. Yes. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission, a t t h i s 

time, I moved the admission i n t o evidence of Chesapeake 

E x h i b i t s 15 through 25. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Chesapeake E x h i b i t s 15 through 25 

w i l l be admitted i n t o the re c o r d . 

[ A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s 15 through 25 admitted i n t o 

evidence.] 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes my d i r e c t examination 

of Mr. Adams. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Just a couple of questions. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. F i r s t , and I may have missed t h i s , Mr. Adams, 

what i s the water source o f the i n j e c t i o n wells? 

A. I t ' s coming from s e v e r a l producing w e l l s . I 

b e l i e v e they're Devonian producers i n the area t h a t are 

c u r r e n t l y going t o a d i s p o s a l system about three-and-a-half 

miles away. 

Q. Okay. And Mr. Adams, i f you look a t your 

E x h i b i t 19. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And I'm fo c u s i n g on E x h i b i t -- or excuse 

me -- t r a c t 3 i n which P i n t a i l owns an i n t e r e s t . And these 

numbers k i n d of run tog e t h e r as you're going down, and I j u s t 

want t o make sure I've got the r i g h t numbers. 

But l o o k i n g over i n the green column. 

A. Yes. 
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Q. That's the estimated u l t i m a t e primary; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t shows t h a t P i n t a i l ' s t r a c t would have 

j u s t under 20 percent of the estimated u l t i m a t e i n the u n i t 

area. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then you go over t o the blue column, and on 

the r e s e r v o i r pore volume, i t has about 2.3 percent of the 

r e s e r v o i r pore volume. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s -- and I don't want t o put words i n your 

mouth, but i s n ' t t h a t anomalous t o have such a low pore volume 

and a hi g h u l t i m a t e recovery? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e so. I t h i n k i t depends on when 

the w e l l i s d r i l l e d . That A t l a n t i c R i c h f i e l d w e l l was one of 

the f i r s t w e l l s d r i l l e d out t h e r e , and i t had a long time t o 

produce a l o t of the o i l t h a t ' s been produced out t h e r e . 

And j u s t because there's a 40-acre t r a c t around t h a t 

w e l l doesn't mean i t d i d n ' t p u l l i n p r o d u c t i o n from o f f of t h a t 

t r a c t , which i t probably d i d since i t was the r e f o r the longest 

time of a l l the w e l l s t h a t have been produced out t h e r e . So 

there's not a d i r e c t c o r r e l a t i o n between u l t i m a t e primary and 

r e s e r v o i r pore volume, i n my o p i n i o n . 

Q. Well, but when you look a t the other t r a c t s --
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l i k e you go t o t r a c t -- I guess i t would be the other t r a c t s 

above, they seem t o be more or less i n l i n e . You've got 

u l t i m a t e recovery of 23 or 24 percent j u s t above t h a t l i n e , and 

the t r a c t s r e f l e c t e d i n t h a t above t r a c t t h r e e show, you know, 

20-some percent pore volume? 

A. Well, I see t r a c t number two t h a t has two w e l l s 

i n i t , the State BG #002 and BG #003. They're going t o produce 

about 24 percent of the u l t i m a t e primary, and they have about 

13 percent of the pore volume. So t h a t ' s c o nsiderably less 

pore volume percentage than u l t i m a t e recovery. 

The r e s t of them, i t looks l i k e , are f a i r l y c l o se. 

But I wouldn't say t h a t t h a t ' s -- l i k e I s a i d before, i t ' s not 

necessary t h a t they be c o r r e l a t a b l e i n t h a t manner because of 

the movable o i l t h a t I had mentioned e a r l i e r . I t depends on 

when the w e l l s were d r i l l e d , how connected t o the r e s e r v o i r 

they are. The logs t h a t we have o n l y g i v e us t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

area t h a t ' s immediately surrounding the w e l l t o determine our 

net pay on. A s h o r t distance or a long d i s t a n c e from the w e l l , 

i t may be connected and s t i l l be able t o get more p r o d u c t i o n 

than you would a n t i c i p a t e from a net pay. 

MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. E x h i b i t 23, which i s the a p p l i c a t i o n t o q u a l i f y 
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f o r the recovery o i l t a x r a t e , you've signed i t , but yet on 

the -- on number -- paragraph 7, which i s on the t h i r d page, 

when asked t o i d e n t i f y the f l u i d t o be i n j e c t e d and the 

a n t i c i p a t e d volume, you i n d i c a t e 2000 b a r r e l s of produced and 

makeup water. Where would t h a t makeup water be, and what i s 

th a t ? 

A. Well, the source of the water t h a t we're going t o 

use f o r i n j e c t i o n has been i n f l u x because we d i d n ' t have i t 

n a i l e d down over the past s e v e r a l months. But r e c e n t l y we have 

come upon t h i s p a r t i c u l a r operator of a s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l 

system t h a t has more than enough c a p a c i t y f o r us t o use i n our 

w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t . And, t h e r e f o r e , we a n t i c i p a t e 100 percent 

of the water we need coming from t h a t source. 

Q. So t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n can be amended t o e l i m i n a t e 

the p o s s i b i l i t y o f the use of f r e s h water? 

A. Yes. And I d i d n ' t i n t e r p r e t t h a t makeup water t o 

onl y be determined -- or only be i d e n t i f i e d as f r e s h water. 

Makeup water can come from other sources as w e l l and not be 

f r e s h water, i n my o p i n i o n . 

Q. That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Adams, r e a l quick: I need you t o e x p l a i n a 
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phenomenon. I t looks l i k e the f o u r d e c l i n e curves t h a t you 

gave us i n E x h i b i t 15, I b e l i e v e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You've got something l a b e l e d t h e r e c a l l e d GOR 

co l l a p s e . What's happening there? 

A. I t ' s a phenomenon t h a t you see q u i t e a b i t i n 

w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t s . E a r l y on i n the p r o j e c t , whenever you 

s t a r t i n j e c t i n g water i n t o the produced f o r m a t i o n , you see a 

increase i n r e s e r v o i r pressure. And w i t h t h a t increase i n 

r e s e r v o i r pressure, the gas t h a t has come out of the s o l u t i o n 

i n the r e s e r v o i r begins t o go back i n s o l u t i o n , and your GOR as 

a r e s u l t of t h a t decreases because o f pressure increase. 

Q. You decrease i t down t o e s s e n t i a l l y nothing? 

A. I t does i n t h i s case. And i t does i n a l o t of 

the other cases t h a t I've seen w i t h a w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t . 

Since i t d i d i n t h i s case, we don't a n t i c i p a t e any a d d i t i o n a l 

secondary gas being recovered i n t h i s p r o j e c t . We only have 

secondary o i l . 

Q. Are you going t o book any gas reserves f o r the 

waterflood? 

A. No. We don't have any scheduled t o be booked. 

Q. Okay. Now, which e x h i b i t d i d you have -- l e t me 

c o r r e c t something f o r the record. That was E x h i b i t 16 t h a t we 

were t a l k i n g about. Which e x h i b i t d i d you have t h a t compared 

the West Pearl Queen u n i t w i t h the Quail Queen u n i t ? 
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A. 18. 

Q. The West Pearl Queen u n i t was wate r f l o o d e d , t o o , 

wasn't i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How do you e x p l a i n t h i s s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e i n 

your estimated EUR and the EUR from the West Pearl Queen? 

A. Are you t a l k i n g about the t o t a l MBO number t h a t ' s 

r e f l e c t e d as 1.6 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s f o r the Quail Queen? 

Q. I'm assuming, and I may be assuming wrong, the 

.36 i s the percentage of the o r i g i n a l o i l i n place recovered 

a f t e r w a t e r f l o o d i n g on the Quail Queen? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And the .22 percent i s the percentage of the 

o r i g i n a l o i l i n place recovered a f t e r w a t e r f l o o d i n g i n the West 

Pearl Queen? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . Okay. I understand your 

question now. Like I s a i d , t h a t West Pearl Queen u n i t was 

u n i t i z e d i n 1964, which was a long time ago. And technology 

has, of course, increased since t h a t time. We're able t o keep 

w e l l s pumped o f f , keep p e r f o r a t i o n s open and recover a l o t more 

of the primary p r o d u c t i o n as a r e s u l t of t h a t technology. So 

we can get a bigger primary recovery on our w e l l s which weren't 

even d r i l l e d u n t i l t h ree years a f t e r the West Pearl Queen u n i t 

was u n i t i z e d . And t h a t ' s how I would e x p l a i n t h a t d i f f e r e n c e . 

Q. Who's the operator of the West Pearl Queen u n i t ? 
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A. Right now i t ' s X e r i c . 

Q. I t looks t o me t o be a tremendous o p p o r t u n i t y 

there f o r a sharp operator, don't you t h i n k ? 

A. Well, again, because o f the age of the w e l l bores 

out t h e r e , you may be g e t t i n g i n t o a l o t bi g g e r problem than 

you want t o because of p o s s i b l e casing leaks and casing 

problems. And whenever you s t a r t i n c r e a s i n g pressure from 

w a t e r f l o o d i n g , you can see a l o t of these casing leaks s t a r t i n g 

t o be a problem and having t o p l u g a l o t of the w e l l s and 

r e - d r i l l them. 

Q. Has any thought been given t o f u t u r e t e r t i a r y 

p o t e n t i a l on the Quail Queen u n i t ? 

A. To my knowledge, the Queen fo r m a t i o n out here i n 

Lea County i s not a good candidate f o r t e r t i a r y - t y p e 

recovery -- and I assume you're t a l k i n g about C02. 

Q. Right. 

A. The Delaware i s the only f o r m a t i o n t h a t I know of 

t h a t has responded w e l l t o t e r t i a r y recovery methods. But 

t h a t ' s something t h a t we c o n t i n u a l l y look a t , and i t may be a 

p o s s i b i l i t y i n the f u t u r e . Again, w i t h technology i n c r e a s i n g 

and becoming b e t t e r and b e t t e r each day, each year, then t h a t ' s 

a p o s s i b i l i t y i n the f u t u r e f o r the Queen. 

Q. Does Chesapeake operate any carbon f l o o d s --

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. -- i n New Mexico? 
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A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Okay. And j u s t t o c l e a r up something t h a t I 

panicked on when you s a i d you were going t o have a 3,000 pound 

i n j e c t i o n pressure, you're t a l k i n g about the bottom hole 

pressure, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. That's w i t h the weight of the f l u i d . 

Q. Yeah. That wasn't the way Commissioner B a i l e y 

and I took t h a t a t f i r s t . 

I want t o r e i t e r a t e a questi o n -- or elabora t e a 

l i t t l e b i t on a questio n t h a t Mr. Bruce asked you. Did you say 

t h a t there's no r e l a t i o n s h i p between the EUR and the PD? 

A. I s a i d there's not a d i r e c t c o r r e l a t i o n . There 

may be a r e l a t i o n s h i p , but there's not a d i r e c t c o r r e l a t i o n . I 

might have misspoke. But i f I d i d , then I would l i k e t o 

c o r r e c t i t w i t h t h a t statement. 

Q. And the p o i n t he was t r y i n g t o make, the 2.3 

percent of pore volume c o n t r i b u t e s 20 percent of the EUR. I 

mean, "compared t o 20 percent of the EUR," t h a t doesn't r a i s e a 

red f l a g f o r you? 

A. Yes, i t does r a i s e a r ed f l a g . But i t doesn't 

n e c e s s a r i l y mean t h a t , you know, we need t o look at a d i f f e r e n t 

method t o c a l c u l a t e PPS. Because of the f a c t s t h a t I've 

mentioned, you know, t h i s i s one of the o l d e s t w e l l s out t h e r e , 

and i t ' s had a l o t more o p p o r t u n i t y and l e n g t h of time t o 

produce more of the hydrocarbons. 
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And I'm sure i t ' s d r a i n e d a l o t of the hydrocarbons 

from o f f t h a t t r a c t . And, t h e r e f o r e , i t ' s probably g e t t i n g a 

l o t of the c r e d i t t h a t some of the other t r a c t s should have as 

f a r as the EUR goes. 

Q. So r a t h e r than arguing t h a t i t should represent a 

higher percentage i n the p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r s , you're a n a l y s i s 

would seem t o i n d i c a t e t h a t i t may be g e t t i n g too much under 

the c u r r e n t p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

A. That's what l o g i c would say t o me, yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, any r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. CARR: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything e l s e , Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Just one que s t i o n . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. Adams, have you ever c a l c u l a t e d the drainage 

area f o r the P i n t a i l w e l l ? 

A. Yes. And they've been d r i l l e d -- a l l the w e l l s 

out of here have been d r i l l e d on 40 acres. And t y p i c a l l y , w i t h 

a l l t h i n g s being the same, and t h a t i s producing w e l l s 

producing at the same and s t a r t i n g a t the same time, then they 

should d r a i n approximately 80 acres. 

MR. BRUCE: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anyone e l se have anyth ing? 

Mr. Carr , thank you f o r your wi tnesses . 
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MR. CARR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, d i d you want t o — 

MR. BRUCE: I would j u s t make a c l o s i n g argument 

before Mr. Carr. I had submitted some e x h i b i t s , but r e a l l y 

e v e r y t h i n g t h a t I need t o argue o f f of has been submitted by 

Chesapeake, so I do not p l a n on s u b m i t t i n g my e x h i b i t s on the 

record. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So I guess we're ready f o r 

Mr. Carr's c l o s i n g argument? 

MR. CARR: I t h i n k t h a t as the a p p l i c a n t , t h a t I go 

l a s t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Don't you go f i r s t and l a s t ? 

MR. CARR: I go f i r s t and l a s t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I guess he's p u t t i n g i t t o 

you, Mr. Bruce. 

MR. BRUCE: I don't mind going f i r s t . And t h i s w i l l 

be very b r i e f and Mr. Carr can do the c l o s i n g . I don't mind. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: He does have a p o i n t , though. He 

hasn't heard an y t h i n g y e t . 

MR. BRUCE: And t o the Commissioners, I ask you t o 

get Chesapeake E x h i b i t s 3 and 19 out. And I w i l l be very 

s h o r t . 

I f you look a t E x h i b i t 3, which i s the t r a c t 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n s , when Chesapeake f i r s t came before the D i v i s i o n , 

the t r a c t p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r s were f l i p p e d . I t was u l t i m a t e 
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primary was 10 percent, pore volume was 10 percent, usable w e l l 

bore was 40 percent, and c u r r e n t p r o d u c t i o n was 40 percent. 

Mr. Mueller of P i n t a i l , h i s primary argument a t the 

D i v i s i o n h earing was t h a t u l t i m a t e p rimary should have a bigger 

f a c t o r than 10 percent, which the D i v i s i o n d i d and increased i t 

t o 40 percent. I t also increased pore volume t o 40 percent. 

And i f you look through a number of D i v i s i o n orders on 

secondary recovery and other matters l i k e t h a t , o f t e n pore 

volume does have a hi g h percentage, and i t probably should. 

But the numbers t h a t you see i n t h i s on E x h i b i t 19, 

i s what I p o i n t e d out, i t seems t o me k i n d of anomalous when 

P i n t a i l ' s w e l l has about 20 percent of the u l t i m a t e primary 

w i t h i n the u n i t , but only j u s t over 2 percent of the pore 

volumes. So P i n t a i l ' s argument i s there's something wrong i n 

the pore volume numbers. E i t h e r t h a t , or P i n t a i l ' s t r a c t 

r e a l l y has a very, very h i g h recovery j u s t i n the u l t i m a t e 

primary. And t h a t seems anomalous. 

P i n t a i l w i l l , of course, accept whatever the 

Commission comes up w i t h . I t would simply argue t h a t because 

of these anomalous pore volume numbers t h a t perhaps, although 

the usable w e l l bores should remain at 10 percent and u l t i m a t e 

primary at 40 percent, the other two f a c t o r s should perhaps be 

the pore volume and c u r r e n t p r o d u c t i o n should each be weighted 

25 percent, because of those anomalous numbers on E x h i b i t 19. 

Thank you. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: R e b u t t a l , Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission, today we're 

having a de novo hearing on the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r de novo hearing 

of P i n t a i l . We have no witness. We have no e x h i b i t s from 

P i n t a i l , and the arguments of counsel are not evidence. So 

b a s i c a l l y , P i n t a i l has come before us and presented no 

evidence. Chesapeake i s t r y i n g t o implement a w a t e r f l o o d . 

We've been doing i t f o r over a year. 

P i n t a i l o bjected. The D i v i s i o n took the o b j e c t i o n , 

considered i t , changed the p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r s . We've been 

t r y i n g t o comply w i t h t h a t order. And we t h i n k t h a t a t t h i s 

p o i n t i n time, w i t h r e a l l y no evidence from P i n t a i l , i t ' s time 

t o l e t us go ahead and put t h i s u n i t i n place and get on w i t h 

the development o f the reserves i n t h i s acreage. 

And so we would request on the evidence presented 

here today t h a t the a p p l i c a t i o n be granted and would ask t h a t 

i t be expedited so we can go ahead w i t h our p r o j e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you a l l very much. 

MR. CARR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. BRUCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm assuming t h a t i t i s the 

pleasure of the Commission t o go i n t o executive session t o 

d e l i b e r a t e . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I move t h a t we go i n t o executive 
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session. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n fa v o r s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. At t h i s p o i n t , l e t the 

record r e f l e c t t h a t the Commission has vote d t o go i n t o 

e xecutive session t o d e l i b e r a t e on Cases No. 14001 and 14002, 

and only those two c o n s o l i d a t e d cases. 

[Executive session from 2:20 p.m. t o 2:27 p.m., and 

testimony continued as f o l l o w s : ] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s p o i n t , we w i l l go back on 

the rec o r d and reconvene the r e g u l a r l y scheduled Thursday, 

September 11th, 2008, meeting of the New Mexico O i l 

Conservation Commission. 

The r e c o r d should r e f l e c t t h a t d u r i n g the i n t e r i m the 

Commission met i n executive session t o d e l i b e r a t e t h e i r 

d e c i s i o n on Cases No. 14001 and 14002. No other items were 

discussed. And the Commission has reached a d e c i s i o n i n those 

cases. 

The d e c i s i o n has been t h a t we w i l l adopt the 

D i v i s i o n ' s order w i t h the p r o v i s o t h a t t h e r e w i l l be a 

p r o h i b i t i o n i n t h e r e against freshwater use i n the w a t e r f l o o d . 

We've d i r e c t e d counsel t o d r a f t an order t o t h a t e f f e c t f o r 
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p r e s e n t a t i o n t o the Commission a t i t s next r e g u l a r l y scheduled 

meeting, which I guess i s November 6th. 

So w i t h t h a t , we w i l l go t o the next item on the 

docket. I t ' s Case No. 14134. I t ' s the A p p l i c a t i o n of the 

Board of County Commissioners of Rio A r r i b a County f o r 

C a n c e l l a t i o n or Suspension of A p p l i c a t i o n s f o r Permits t o D r i l l 

f i l e d by Approach Resources, LLC, i n Rio A r r i b a County, New 

Mexico. Case No. 14134 w i l l be continued t o the December 11th, 

2008, Commission meeting. 

The next it e m on the docket i s Case No. 14141. I t ' s 

the A p p l i c a t i o n of Approach Operating, LLC, f o r Approval of Six 

A p p l i c a t i o n s f o r Permits t o d r i l l i n Rio A r r i b a County. This 

case has been also continued t o the December 11th, 2008, 

Commission meeting. With t h a t , i s there any other business 

before the Commission today? Seeing none, the Chair would 

e n t e r t a i n a motion f o r adjournment. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I so move. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n fa v o r s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. Let the recor d r e f l e c t t h a t 

the meeting was adjourned a t 2:30 p.m. on Thursday, 

September 11, 2008. 
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